
CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

COUNCIL MEETING 

AGENDA 
December 18, 2023 

    6:15 p.m. 
 

 

 

1.  Council Work Session 

2. Call to Order and Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance  

4. Invocation by Mayor Langlois  

 

5. Public Comment on Agenda Items  

6.    Approval of Consent Agenda 

a. Regular Agenda 

b. Minutes of the December 4, 2023, Regular City Council Meeting 

c. List of Bills 

 

     7.    Unfinished Business 

8.    New Business 

a. Mayoral Appointments to Council Committees 

b. General Board and Commission Appointments 

c. Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Fund-FY 2023 Valuation 

 

       9.    Comments from the Mayor and City Council 

     10.    Reports from City Manager, City Attorney & Department Heads  

 

     11.    Public Comment  

  Please state your name and home address 

          Please limit comments to 3 minutes per individual presentation 

(City Council Rules of Procedure:  10/7/2011)             

                                                                     

 12.    Adjournment      

 
American Disability Act Compliance: For access to open meetings of the City Council and any of its 

committees or subcommittees, the City of Roosevelt Park will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids 

and services, to individuals with disabilities who want to attend the meeting, upon twenty-four-hour 

notice to the City of Roosevelt Park.  Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services 

should contact the City of Roosevelt Park, City Clerk by writing or calling, 231-755-3721 or call the 

following: TDD: Dial 7-1-1 and request a representative to dial 231-755-3721.    



 
 

To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jared Olson, City Manager   

Date:  December 14, 2023 

Subject:   Monday, December 18, 2023– CITY COUNCIL MEETING     

 

The following is information pertaining to items on the agenda for your meeting: 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION: 

 

1. Councilmember Request-Resolution to Host Early Voting In-house Document- During the City Council 

meeting of December 4th, Councilmember Johnson distributed the attached document for presentation and 

discussion. 

 

2. Active Agenda Items 

 

COUNCIL MEETING: 

 

a. Mayoral Appointments to Council Committees- Per the charter, appointments to standing committees are to 

be completed by the Mayor during the second meeting of December. 

 

b. General Board and Commission Appointments- As needed annually, several boards and commissions within 

the City have terms that are expiring. As included in the attachment, reappointments are necessary.  

 

c. FY23 Post-employment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) Report-Annual Valuation- As a required 

portion of our annual audit, a valuation of plan assets and liabilities for the Roosevelt Park Other Post 

Employment Benefit plans has been completed and is presented for review and acceptance.  
 

 

If you have questions, please contact me.   

 

City of Roosevelt Park 

A Proud Community 





 
 
 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 
CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING MINUTES 
December 4, 2023 

 
This meeting was called to order by Mayor Aaron Langlois at 6:15 p.m. 

 
 

PRESENT: Council Members: Aaron Langlois, Michael Sutton, Noah Crossno, Diane Goodman, 
Stacey Burmeister, Fawn Cruz, Matt Johnson 

 
                  STAFF:    City Manager Jared Olson, City Treasurer Kate Dibble, DPW Supervisor Ben 
                                              VanHoeven, Chief of Police Shawn Bride                               
 

ABSENT: City Clerk Ann Wisniewski 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

Council discussed Agenda Items: 
• Appointment of City Officers 
• 2024 Meeting Dates 
• 2024 Property and Liability Insurance Renewal 
• Poverty Exemption Resolution 23-15 
• Huntington Bank Account Signers 
• MERS HCSP Agreement 
• List of Bills 

 
Special Guests: 

None 

City Treasurer Kate Dibble called the Council meeting to order at 6:33 pm 

2023-218 ROLL CALL 
City Treasurer Kate Dibble called roll call. 

 
2023-219 INVOCATION 

Council Member Cruz provided the Invocation. 
 

2023-220 NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF MAYOR/MAYOR PRO TEM 
Council Members nominated Council Member Langlois for the office of Mayor for the 
City of Roosevelt Park. This nomination was supported by all members. Council 
Member Langlois accepted the nomination. 
There being no further nominations for the Office of Mayor, nominations were closed. 



Voting in favor of Council Member Aaron Langlois for the Office of Mayor for the City of 
Roosevelt Park for a term expiring November 2024. 
Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 

 
Council Members nominated Council Member Sutton for the Office of Mayor Pro Tem 
for the City of Roosevelt Park. This nomination was supported by all Members. Council 
Member Sutton accepted the nomination. 

 
Voting in favor of Council Member Sutton for the Office of Mayor Pro-Tem for the City 
of Roosevelt Park for a term expiring November 2024. 
Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 
 

 

2023-221 OATH OF OFFICE 
City Treasurer Kate Dibble administered Oath of Office to newly elected Mayor: Aaron 
Langlois and newly elected Mayor Pro-Tem: Michael Sutton. 

 

2023-222 PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 
None 

 
2023-223 CONSENT AGENDA 

Council Member Crossno moved to approve the consent agenda. This motion was 
Supported by Council Member Burmeister. 
Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 
Appointment of City Officers 2024 
City Officers are appointed annually by City Council as required by Section 5.2 of the 
City Charter, the “appointive officers of the City shall be appointed” by the City 
Council at their first regular meeting in December. 
Currently City officers up for appointment are the following: 
City Manager - Jared Olson 

                                               City Clerk – Ann Wisniewski 
                                              City Treasurer – Kate Dibble  
                                              Chief of Police-Shawn Bride 

Superintendent of Public Works-Ben VanHoeven 
Fire Chief-City of Norton Shores Fire Dept. (contract) 
City Attorney-John Schrier/Parmenter Law 
 
This item was included in the consent agenda and passed. 
 

 
2023-224 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None 
 

2023-225 NEW BUSINESS 
 



9A. 2024 Meeting Dates 
Council Member Cruz moved to approve the 2024 Meeting Schedule as presented. 
This motion was supported by Council Member Goodman. 
Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 

 
9B. 2024 Commercial Property and Liability Insurance Coverage 

                                               Council Member Crossno moved to approve the coverage proposal for upcoming 2024  
                                               Year. This motion was supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Sutton.     
                                              Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 
 

9C. 2024 Property Tax Poverty Exemption Policy Update 
Council Member Burmeister moved to approve resolution 23-15 and the corresponding 
poverty tax exemption policy and guidelines as presented.  This motion was supported by 
Council   Member Cruz. 
Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 

 
9D. Updating Huntington Bank Account Signers 
Mayor Langlois moved to approve the updating of the Huntington Bank 
signature cards to reflect approved account signers a City Manager Jared 
Olson, City Treasurer Kate Dibble, Mayor Aaron Langlois, and Mayor Pro 
Tem Michael Sutton.   This motion was supported by Council Member 
Goodman. 
Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 
 
9E.  MERS HCSP Employer/Employee Contribution Amendment 
Council Member Cruz moved to approve the amended MERS HCSP Plan document as 
presented for all full-time employees effective for Fiscal Year 2024.  This motion was  
supported by Mayor Langlois. 
Roll Call: 7 Ayes, 0 Nays Motion Carries 

 
2023-226 COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Council Members shared comments. 
 

2023-227 DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS 
Department Heads shared comments. 

 
2023-228 PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None 
 

2023-229 ADJOURNMENT 
                                               Mayor Pro Tem Sutton moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:07 p.m. This motion supported  
                                               By Council Member Burmeister and carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

Ann Wisniewski, City Clerk 



Invoice #

1/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Thursday, December 14, 2023
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

4222(E) ACCIDENT FUND

1,094.20 WORKERS COMP 1001088943

Check Total 1,094.20 

4223(E) ADVANCE AUTO PARTS

20.79 BRAKE LINE - UNIT 5 538233392141
9 29.73 CAR WASH, WASH MIT, CLAY OIL ABSORBENT 538233402145
3Check Total 50.52 

4224(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

209.27 DPW HITCH MOUNT CARRIER, BUSINESS LICENS 112-7392117-
3975437 82.47 EMERGENCY LIGHTS, LABELS 114-1024349-
7863416 52.47 MS OFFICE SUBSCRIPTION DEC E0400Q0ZNO

181.74 COPY PAPER 10126020930

Check Total 525.95 

4225(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

425.00 CITY MANAGER DUES 2024 DUES2024

95.00 MEMBERSHIP - COUNCIL MEMBER JOHNSON 64922

Check Total 520.00 

4226(E) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD

75.00 CLERK ANNUAL DUES 2024DUES

Check Total 75.00 

4227(E) BLUE CARE NETWORK OF MI

1,641.36 RETIREE HEALTH CARE - JAN 233420015378

Check Total 1,641.36 

4228(E) BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICH

2,171.43 RETIREE HEALTH CARE - JAN 174673258

Check Total 2,171.43 

4229(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

89.59 1000 0015 1900 2848 ASHLAND 207058821503

Check Total 89.59 

4230(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

55.88 1000 0015 2536 - 896 W BROADWAY 207058821514

Check Total 55.88 

4231(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

2,128.20 1000 0015 6057 936 OAKRIDGE GUL 2 205902677566

Check Total 2,128.20 

4232(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

15.25 1000 0017 0686 3106 ROOSEVELT RD 206080610253

Check Total 15.25 

4233(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

241.39 1000 0038 5011 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 206792195688

Check Total 241.39 

4234(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

46.61 1000 0460 5042 3105 ROOSEVELT 204656858515

Check Total 46.61 

4235(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

115.17 1000 0460 5166 3106 ROOSEVELT 204656858516

Check Total 115.17 

4236(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

32.27 1000 0597 2995 1168 CORNELL 206258538068

Check Total 32.27 

4237(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

325.00 1000 0616 4881 1580 GARRISON 205101780910

Check Total 325.00 



Invoice #

2/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Thursday, December 14, 2023
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

4238(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

29.37 1000 0616 6274 3064 GLENSIDE 205101780911

Check Total 29.37 

4239(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

29.22 1000 0622 0758 1344 GREENWICH RD 206080623226

Check Total 29.22 

4240(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

32.70 1000 0628 6080 1502 HAVERHILL 206080623227

Check Total 32.70 

4241(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

71.98 1000 0678 0280 898 W BROADWAY 205991634772

Check Total 71.98 

4242(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

492.75 1000 0777 1684 880 OAKRIDGE 202254134354

Check Total 492.75 

4243(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

29.08 1000 0783 4730 901 POST RD 202245134355

Check Total 29.08 

4244(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

35.48 1000 0832 5373 3278 GERMAINE 201186294364

Check Total 35.48 

4245(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

35.75 1000 0864 3968 1267 LAMBERT 201186294365

Check Total 35.75 

4246(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

28.93 1000 0849 1167 3163 MAPLE GROVE 201186294366

Check Total 28.93 

4247(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

29.22 1000 0864 2272 1140 SHERWOOD 203144027601

Check Total 29.22 

4248(E) CONSUMERS ENERGY

1,332.75 1030 2926 0835 49441 LED LIGHT RD 201097316793

Check Total 1,332.75 

4249(E) HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

418.69 STREETS, EQUIPMENT, WATER, DDA, COMMUNIT 121323

Check Total 418.69 

4250(E) KENDALL ELECTRIC

3,891.00 GLENSIDE LIGHTING S113500554.0
05Check Total 3,891.00 

4251(E) MICHIGAN STATE POLICE

30.00 SOR REGISTRATION 551-627164

Check Total 30.00 

4252(E) STATE OF MICHIGAN

180.00 MIDEAL DUES - 2024 2024DUES

Check Total 180.00 

4253(E) WEX BANK

2,930.72 GAS(DPW 544.169, PD 443.845) 93685689

Check Total 2,930.72 

4254(A) ASPHALT PAVING, INC.

4,200.00 CHAPEL RD RESURFACING API-0003081

Check Total 4,200.00 

4255(A) BEAVER RESEARCH CO

346.10 EQUIPMENT LUBRICANT, CLEANER, RAGS 0365426-IN



Invoice #

3/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Thursday, December 14, 2023
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

Check Total 346.10 

4256(A) EMERGENCY SERVICES LLC

800.00 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE - JAN 20693

Check Total 800.00 

4257(A) FLEX ADMINISTRATORS, INC.

35.00 FLEX ADMINISTRATON - NOV 934138

Check Total 35.00 

4258(A) KENT COMMUNICATIONS INC

246.98 MAIL COURIER SERVICES 8876-155730

Check Total 246.98 

4259(A) MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

2,789.00 MML ANNUAL DUES 2024DUES

Check Total 2,789.00 

4260(A) MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE LIABILITY

49,545.00 2024 LIABILITY INSURANCE 871207

Check Total 49,545.00 

4261(A) MUSKEGON CENTRAL DISPATCH 911

447.43 IT SUPPORT - DEC 2300001840

3,786.33 DISPATCH SERVICES - JAN 2300001854

Check Total 4,233.76 

4262(A) MUSKEGON CHARTER TOWNSHIP

915.66 CODE ENFORCEMENT - NOV 2300015501

Check Total 915.66 

4263(A) MUSKEGON CNTY TREASURER

25.00 FINGER PRINTING - PD EMPLOYMENT 0000200232

Check Total 25.00 

4264(A) PARMENTER LAW

108.00 SHERMAN PROPERTY SALE 277044

1,332.00 LABOR MATTERS 277043

203.00 GENERAL LEGAL 277042

360.00 TAX APPEAL 277041

119.50 PROSECUTIONS 277040

450.00 GENERAL LEGAL 277039

Check Total 2,572.50 

4265(A) PREIN & NEWHOF, P.C

4,404.20 GLENSIDE BLVD 78765

3,695.00 WATER RELIABILITY STUDY 78777

Check Total 8,099.20 

4266(A) REPUBLIC SERVICES

15,536.90 WASTE REMOVAL - NOV 0240-
009407215Check Total 15,536.90 

4267(A) SILVERSMITH DATA

3,900.00 GIS HOSTING/ANNUAL DATA PLAN 40974

Check Total 3,900.00 

4268(A) VANHOEVEN, BEN

1,059.20 DENTAL REIMBURSEMENT 120423DENTAL

Check Total 1,059.20 

4269(A) WEST MICHIGAN DOCUMENT SHREDDING

42.00 SHREDDING SERVICES 136847

305.50 PD DOCUMENT PURGE 137084

Check Total 347.50 

4270(A) WEST MICHIGAN UNIFORM

50.00 DPW UNIFORM CLEANING 5783421



Invoice #

4/4

(231) 755-3721

ROOSEVELT PARK, MI 49441

900 OAK RIDGE ROAD

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK
A Proud Community

Thursday, December 14, 2023
User: TREASURER
DB: Roosevelt Park

COUNCIL LIST

INVOICE AMTDESCRIPTIONVENDOR NAMECHECK NUMBER

50.00 DPW UNIFORM CLEANING 5785240

Check Total 100.00 

4271(A) WINDEMULLER

300.00 TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE - DEC 232038

Check Total 300.00 

38252 PRO CLEAN SOLUTIONS

150.00 BUILDING CLEANING ROO120123

Check Total 150.00 

38253 WORKPLACE HEALTH MUSKEGON

79.50 EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL - DPW 287172

Check Total 79.50 

Report Total 114,006.76 



Agenda Item________ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 18, 2023

Mayoral 2024 Council Committee Appointments Date:  December 18, 2023 

Summary:  The Mayor selects the appointments of the City Council members to the 

Committees of Council (Personnel & Finance; Public Safety; Public Works) as outlined in 

Section F. (3, a) of the City Council’s Rules of Procedure.  That language is below and 

coincides with the language within Section 3.13 of the City of Roosevelt Park Charter. 

Committee members will be appointed by the Mayor and shall be members of the Council.  

The Mayor shall fill any committee vacancies.  The committee members shall serve one year 

and may be reappointed.  Special committees may be established for a specific period of time 

by the Mayor or by a resolution of the Council which specifies the task of the special 

committee and the date of its dissolution. 

The previous 2023 standing committee assignments are as follows with vacancies due to 

council members no longer on the Council. 

Personnel & Finance:  Mayor Langlois, Noah Crossno, Michael Sutton (Chair) 

Public Safety:  Mayor Langlois, Stacey Burmeister, Diane Goodman (Chair) 

Department of Public Works:  Mayor Langlois, Fawn Cruz, Vacant (Chair) 

Financial Impact: None 

Recommendation:  The appointments to each committee are made by the Mayor per charter. 

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 

8a



Agenda Item___8b_____ 

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

December 18, 2023

Item: Board and Commission Appointments Date:  December 18, 2023 

Summary:  In accordance with Section 3.13 of the City Charter, the Mayor appoints members to citizen 

boards and commissions, with the advice and consent of the Council.  Due to several boards experiencing 

term expirations throughout the year, the City Council is asked to reappoint volunteer community 

members on their respective boards and committees.  The following reappointments are requested: 

City of Roosevelt Park Downtown Development Authority 

• Mike Lonnee-Term Expires 12/2024

• Jay Keessen-Term Expires 12/2024

• Council Appointment- Open

• Mayor or Mayors Designee- Currently Noah Crossno

City of Roosevelt Park Planning Commission 

• Richard Isacson-Term Expires 12/2026
• Donald Nilson-Hinton-Term Expires 12/2026
• Council Appointment-Currently Michael Sutton

• Mayor or Mayors Designee

City of Roosevelt Park Zoning Board of Appeals 

• James Farrell-Term Expires 12/2025

• Richard Isacson-Term Expires 12/2025

• 2 vacancies

• 2 alternate vacancies

Board of Review 

• Bob Jakubowski-Term Expires 12/2025

• Council Appointment- Currently Noah Crossno

• 2 alternate vacancies

Recreation and Parks Commission 

• Jeff Grossenbacher-Term Expires 12/2026

• Karly Smothers- Term Expires 12/26

• Mayor or Mayors Designees

• Council Appointment-Currently Noah Crossno

Recommendation:  Move to reappoint community volunteers to the respective boards and commissions 

as presented.   

Signature:  Title:  City Manager 



Agenda Item #___8c____

CITY OF ROOSEVELT PARK 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 December 18, 2023

Other Post-employment Benefits (OPEB) Valuation Report Date: December 18, 2023 

Summary: The City is required to have a full valuation every two years of its OPEB (retiree 

healthcare) funding.  Watkins Ross has completed the full report for the year ending November 

30, 2023, and that report is attached. 

As previewed within that report, significant changes in benefits, staffing, and retirees have 

benefitted the plan funding levels with our unfunded liability dropping $210,980 in 2023.  The 

total unfunded liability was reduced from $954,886 in 2022 to $743,906 in 2023 (Page 5). 

Financial Impact:  The report determines estimated long-term cost of the cities OPEB obligation 

Recommendation:  To accept the OPEB Actuarial Valuation report for the year ending 

11/30/2023 from Watkins Ross. 

Signature:  Title: City Manager 



 

 

 

200 Ottawa Ave NW Suite 600 
Grand Rapids MI 49503 

WatkinsRoss.com 
616.456.9696 

 

 

 

RETIREMENT PLAN CONSULTANTS, ACTUARIES & ADMINISTRATORS | 100% EMPLOYEE-OWNED 

December 8, 2023 
 
PERSONAL & CONFIDENTIAL 
 
Jared Olson 

City of Roosevelt Park 

900 Oak Ridge Road 

Roosevelt Park, MI  49441 

 

RE: City of Roosevelt Park Retiree Health Plan 

 

Dear Jared: 

 
Transmitted via email, this is a copy of your OPEB accounting report for the fiscal year ending 
November 30, 2023.  This information is intended to assist you in complying with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 74 (GASB 74) Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans, and Statement No. 75 (GASB 75) Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. 
 
The actuarial values shown in this report are based on November 30, 2022 results rolled forward to 
November 30, 2023. 
 
If you have any questions about this report, please call me at (616) 742-9244. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Christian R. Veenstra, FCA, ASA, MAAA 
President / Enrolled Actuary 
 
Enclosure 

  

https://watkinsross.com/


R:\55895\2023\GASB\GASB-RPT 74 75 11.30.2023.docx 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Roosevelt Park  

Retiree Health Plan 
 

Accounting Report  
 

for the Period Ending November 30, 2023 

under GASB Statement 74 & 75 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WATKINS ROSS | 200 OTTAWA AVE N.W. | SUITE 600 | GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49503 | 616.456.9696 



R:\55895\2023\GASB\GASB-RPT 74 75 11.30.2023.docx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Report presented by: 
 

 

December 2023 



 

 

CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION AND CERTIFICATION ........................................................................... 1 

COMMENTS ................................................................................................................. 2 

PLAN DESCRIPTION ...................................................................................................... 3 

ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS .................................................................................... 4 

RECONCILIATION AND RECOGNITION OF NET OPEB LIABILITY ...................................... 5 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability ............................................................................................................ 5 

Net OPEB Liability – Discount and Trend Rate Sensitivities ..................................................................... 5 

OPEB Expense ........................................................................................................................................... 6 

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position ............................................................................................................. 6 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB Plan ....................................................... 6 

Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability ......................................................................................................... 7 

Total OPEB Liability by Participant Status ................................................................................................ 7 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ........................................ 8 

Description of Actuarially Determined Contributions .............................................................................. 8 

State of Michigan Public Acts 530 and 202 Information .......................................................................... 9 

Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios ................................................................................. 10 

Assumptions and Methods for Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contribution ............................ 11 

Assumptions used for PA 202 Reporting ................................................................................................ 12 

Schedule of Difference between Actual and Expected Experience ....................................................... 13 

Schedule of Changes in Assumptions ..................................................................................................... 13 

Schedule of Differences between Projected and Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments .............. 13 

Total Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources ....................................................................................... 14 

TRUSTEE INFORMATION ............................................................................................ 15 

SUMMARY OF PLAN PROVISIONS .............................................................................. 16 

GLOSSARY.................................................................................................................. 17 

 

 



1 

INTRODUCTION AND CERTIFICATION 

The schedules included in this report have been prepared in order to provide the information 

necessary to comply with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Nos. 74 and 

75.  This information may, at the discretion of management of the plan sponsor and its auditor, be 

used for the preparation of its financial statements.  The calculations herein have been made based 

on our understanding of GASB 74 and 75 and may be inappropriate for other purposes.  

 

The calculations summarized in this report involve actuarial calculations that require assumptions 

about future events.  We believe that the assumptions used in the report are within the range of 

possible assumptions that are reasonable and appropriate for the purposes for which they have been 

used.  However, other assumptions are also reasonable and appropriate, and their use would produce 

different results. 

 

This report contains additional information and details related to plan provisions and recommended 

contribution calculations. 

 

This report was prepared based on participant data and asset values as reported to us by the plan 

sponsor.  Watkins Ross relied upon the data as submitted, and has no reason to believe that any 

information, which would have a material effect on the results of this valuation, was not considered 

in the preparation of the report. 

The actuary certifying this report represents herself as meeting the Qualification Standards of the 

American Academy of Actuaries to render actuarial opinions contained in the report. 

 

Prepared and Certified by:  Reviewed by: 

 

 

 

    

Leah A. Dudley, FCA, ASA, MAAA  Joseph Shackelford, ASA, MAAA 

Health Actuary  Actuary 

 

 

 

  



2 

COMMENTS 

Purpose of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Reporting 

The objective of GASB is to provide guidelines and requirements for accounting and financial reporting by state 

and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB).  This statement establishes 

standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources and methods 

and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments and discount those payments to 

their actuarial present value. 

State of Michigan Public Act 202 

Public Act 202 (PA 202) was drafted to address the underfunded status of pension and retiree healthcare plans 

of local governments in Michigan.  Accordingly, PA 202 included transparency and funding requirements.  In 

addition, in order that the plans’ funded status be reported on a consistent basis, Uniform Assumptions were 

published.  While all of the Uniform Assumptions have a sound and reasonable basis, some might not be 

appropriate for each plan and therefore may be different than what is used for funding.  Additionally, some of 

the assumptions may differ from what is required for reporting under GASB. 

PA 202 further requires that plans covering 100 or more Plan Members – active and inactive: 

1. At least every 5 years, the local unit of government (city, village, township, county, county road 

commission or other districts, authorities created by the state or 1 or more these entities) shall have 

an actuarial experience study conducted by the plan actuary for each retirement system of the local 

unit of government and 

2. At least every 8 years, the local unit of government shall do at least 1 of the following: 

a. Have a peer actuarial audit conducted by an actuary that is not the plan actuary 

b. Replace the plan actuary 

Actuarial Experience Study – Not applicable; there are fewer than 100 participants in the plan 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions, Plan Changes and Expected Actuarial Experience 

There was an actuarial gain (decrease in liability) of $1,073, due to the retiree benefit payments being lower 

than projected.  The combination of actuarial assumption changes, described in the “Assumptions and 

Methods for Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contribution” section of this report, generated an actuarial 

gain of $213,690. 

 

  



3 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

For purposes of measuring the net Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expenses, information about the 
fiduciary net position of the City of Roosevelt Park Retiree Health Plan and additions to/deductions from the 
City’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the City of 
Roosevelt Park.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

Plan Description 

City of Roosevelt Park Retiree Health Plan is a single employer plan established and administered by City of 
Roosevelt Park and can be amended at its discretion. 

Benefits Provided 

A summary of the benefits provided is available in the Plan Provisions section of the report. 

Summary of Plan Participants 

As of November 30, 2022, Retirement Plan membership consisted of the following: 
 

  

Active members 6 

Inactive members 0 

Retirees and beneficiaries 8 

Total members 14 

Contributions  

The City of Roosevelt Park Retiree Health Plan was established and is being funded under the authority of the 
City and under agreements with unions representing various classes of employees.  The plan's funding policy 
is to pay benefit payments from general operating funds with no additional contributions to the OPEB Trust.   
There are no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.  



4 

ASSUMPTIONS AND METHODS 

The City of Roosevelt Park’s OPEB liability was measured as of November 30, 2023. 

Actuarial Assumptions   

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of November 30, 2022 rolled forward to 
November 30, 2023.  The following actuarial assumptions were used in the measurement: 
 

 Inflation 2.50% 
 Salary increases 3.50% (for purpose of allocating liability) 
 Investment rate of return 7.00% (including inflation) 
 20-year Aa Municipal bond rate 4.30% 
 Mortality Public General and Public Safety 2010 Employee and Healthy 

Retiree, Headcount weighted 
 Improvement Scale MP-2021 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on retirement plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
retirement plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic 
real rates of return for each major asset class included in the retirement plan’s target asset allocation are 
summarized in the following table: 

 

Asset Class Target Allocation 

Long-Term Expected 

Real Rate of Return 

Global Equity 60.0% 4.50% 

Global Fixed Income 20.0% 2.00% 

Private Assets 20.0% 7.00% 

The sum of each target allocation times its long-term expected real rate, plus inflation, is 7.00%. 

Discount Rate   

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.52%. The projection of cash flows used to 

determine the discount rate assumed that the City will first use assets to pay benefits and then pay benefits 

on a pay-as-you-go basis.  Based on this assumption, the retirement plan’s fiduciary net position was projected 

to be sufficient to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2035 – the cross-

over point.  For projected benefits that are covered by projected assets, the long-term expected rate was used 

to discount the projected benefits.  From the year that benefit payments were not projected to be covered by 

the projected assets (the “depletion date”), projected benefits were discounted at a discount rate reflecting a 

20-year AA/Aa tax-exempt municipal bond yield.  A single equivalent discount rate that yields the same present 

value of benefits is calculated.  This discount rate is used to determine the Total OPEB Liability.  As of November 

30, 2022 the discount rate used to value OPEB liabilities was 4.66%. 

  



5 

RECONCILIATION AND RECOGNITION OF NET OPEB LIABILITY  

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

 

Total OPEB 

Liability 

(a) 

Plan 

Fiduciary 

Net Position 

(b) 

Net OPEB 

Liability 

(a) - (b) 

    

Balance at November 30, 2022 $1,396,677 $441,791 $954,886 

    

Changes during the Year    

Service Cost 59,867  59,867 

Interest 66,901  66,901 

Experience (Gains)/Losses (1,073)  (1,073) 

Change in plan terms 0  0 

Change in actuarial assumptions (213,690)  (213,690) 

Contributions to OPEB trust  30,000 (30,000) 

Contributions/benefit from general operating funds  41,785 (41,785) 

Employee Contributions  0 0 

Net Investment Income  52,158 (52,158) 

Benefit Payments;  

Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (41,785) (41,785) 0 

Administrative Expenses  (958) 958 

Other Changes  0 0 

Total Changes (129,780) 81,200 (210,980) 

    

Balance at November 30, 2023 $1,266,897 $522,991 $743,906 

 

Net OPEB Liability – Discount and Trend Rate Sensitivities 

The following presents the net OPEB liability (NOL) of the City, calculated using trend and discount 
rates 1% higher and lower than base assumptions: 
 

Discount  1% Decrease  Current Rate  1% Increase 

Total OPEB Liability $1,429,090 $1,266,897 $1,132,511 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 522,991 522,991 522,991 

Net OPEB Liability $906,099 $743,906 $609,520 

 
Trend  1% Decrease  Current Rate  1% Increase 

Total OPEB Liability $1,094,397 $1,266,897 $1,483,032 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 522,991 522,991 522,991 

Net OPEB Liability $571,406 $743,906 $960,041 

 

  



6 

RECONCILIATION AND RECOGNITION OF NET OPEB LIABILITY  

OPEB Expense 

Below are the components of the Total OPEB Expense: 

  Fiscal Year Ending  

 11/30/2023 

Service Cost $59,867 

Interest on Total OPEB Liability 66,901 

Experience (Gains)/Losses (228,742) 

Changes in Plan Terms 0 

Changes in Assumptions (26,136) 

Employee Contributions 0 

Projected Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments (31,941) 

Investment Earnings (Gains)/Losses 9,015 

Administrative Expenses 958 

Other Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 0 

Total OPEB Expense $(150,078) 

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

The OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position as of November 30, 2023 is $522,991.  

 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB Plan 

 Deferred Outflows 

Of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 

Of Resources 

Experience (Gains)/Losses  46 714,988 

Changes of Assumptions  440,948 635,639 

Investment Earnings (Gains)/Losses  22,965 0 

Total $463,959 $1,350,627 

 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will 

be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended  

November 30, 

Amount  

Recognized 

2024 $(249,784) 

2025 (250,148) 

2026 (224,871) 

2027 (154,402) 

2028 (7,463) 

Thereafter 0 

  



7 

RECONCILIATION AND RECOGNITION OF NET OPEB LIABILITY  

Reconciliation of Net OPEB Liability 

  Net OPEB Liability 

Net OPEB Liability November 30, 2022  $954,886 

Total OPEB expense   (150,078) 

Contributions  (71,785) 

Change in deferred outflows of resources  (175,892) 

Change in deferred inflows of resources   186,775 

Net OPEB Liability November 30, 2023  $743,906 

 

 

Total OPEB Liability by Participant Status 

  Total OPEB Liability 

Active participants   $579,594 

Inactive participants  0 

Retirees and beneficiaries  687,303 

Total OPEB Liability  $1,266,897 

 



8 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

Description of Actuarially Determined Contributions 

Although not required as part of GASB reporting, we have included an Actuarially Determined Contribution in 
order to provide information for funding.  This recommended contribution is designed to eventually fund your 
plan enough that you can pay retiree benefits directly from the trust instead of general operating funds.  The 
amortization period is based on average future working years for active employees. 
 

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)1 Fiscal Year Ending November 30, 
 2024 2023 
Discount rate  4.52%  4.66% 
Amortization period  12 years  13 years 
Amortization method Level $ Level $ 
Normal cost 52,851 59,867 
Amortization of Net OPEB Liability 78,143 95,149 
Interest to end of year 5,921 7,224 
Total ADC $136,915 $162,240 

PA 202 was issued by the State of Michigan and requires the calculation of other “contribution” amounts.  
These are 

1. The Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) using Assumptions for financial reporting and 
2. The minimum required amount to be deposited into an OPEB trust 

The first of these contributions as shown above, $162,240, is an amount required to be reported to the State 
of Michigan and may be used to determine whether a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) must be adopted if one 
hasn’t yet been implemented.  It is not a required contribution. 

The second of these numbers is the actual minimum amount the State of Michigan requires you to deposit into 
a trust and it is based on the normal cost (actuarially calculated) for those covered by your plan and hired after 
June 30, 2018.   Because the plan is closed to new employees, this requirement is not applicable. 

 
1 ADC for 2023 and 2024 is based on actuarial assumptions consistent with reporting as of November 30, 2022 and November 30, 

2023, respectively. 



9 

 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

State of Michigan Public Acts 530 and 202 Information  

Financial information 2023 

Assets (Fiduciary net position) 522,991 

Liabilities (Total OPEB Liability)  1,266,897 

Funded ratio for the Plan Year 41.28% 

Actuarially Determined Contribution  $162,240 

Is ADC calculated in compliance with No. Letter 2018-3? Yes 
  

Membership 2023 

Number of active members  6 

Number of inactive members  0 

Number of retirees and beneficiaries 8 

Premiums paid on behalf of the retirants $41,785 

  

Investment Performance  

This information is available from the Investment Manager  
  

Actuarial Assumptions 2023 

Actuarially assumed rate of investment return 7.00% 

Discount rate 4.52% 

Amortization method used for funding unfunded liability Level $ 

Amortization period used for funding unfunded liability 13 years 

Is each division closed to new employees Yes 

Healthcare inflation assumption next year 7.25% 

Healthcare inflation assumption - long term 4.50% 
  

Uniform Assumptions 2023 

Actuarial value of assets using uniform assumptions  522,991 

Actuarial accrued liability using uniform assumptions  1,387,222 

Funded ratio using uniform assumptions 37.70% 

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) using uniform assumptions $235,664 

  

 

 



10 

 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Fiscal Year Ending 11/30/2023 11/30/2022 11/30/2021 11/30/2020 11/30/2019 11/30/2018 

Total OPEB Liability       

Service Cost $59,867 $141,217 $130,453 $144,659 $172,672 $76,801 

Interest 66,901 57,578 60,583 87,194 78,403 87,243 

Changes of Benefit Terms 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Difference between Expected and Actual Experience (1,073) (569,697) 88 (549,707) (196) (384,585) 

Change of Assumptions (213,690) (457,692) 31,590 253,058 (411,677) 945,730 

Benefit Payments (Including Refunds of Employee Contributions) (41,785) (25,569) (25,691) (26,682) (36,340) (46,018) 

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (129,780) (854,163) 197,023 (91,478) (197,138) 679,171 

Total OPEB Liability – Beginning 1,396,677 2,250,840 2,053,817 2,145,294 2,342,432 1,663,262 

Total OPEB Liability – Ending (a) $1,266,897 $1,396,677 $2,250,840 $2,053,817 $2,145,294 $2,342,433 

       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position       

Contributions to OPEB trust $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $0 

Contributions/benefit payments made from general operating funds 41,785 25,569 25,691 26,682 36,340 46,018 

Net Investment Income 52,158 (68,606) 93,058 28,478 9,557 18,710 

Benefit Payments (Including Refunds of Employee Contributions) (41,785) (25,569) (25,691) (26,682) (36,340) (46,018) 

Administrative Expenses (958) (893) (866) (720) (725) (878) 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 81,200 (69,499) 92,192 27,758 20,832 17,832 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Beginning 441,791 511,290 419,098 391,340 370,508 352,676 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Ending (b) 522,991 441,791 511,290 419,098 391,340 370,508 

       

Net OPEB Liability – Ending (a)-(b) $743,906 $954,886 $1,739,550 $1,634,719 $1,753,954 $1,971,925 

       

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total OPEB Liability  41.3%  31.6%  22.7%  20.4%  18.2%  15.8% 

Covered Employee Payroll $500,954 $487,759 $730,393 $630,309 $573,247 $580,548 

Net OPEB Liability as Percentage of Payroll  148.5%  195.8%  238.2%  259.4%  306.0%  339.7% 

       

Actuarially Determined Contribution $162,240 $313,398 $285,748 $314,386 $344,953 $202,978 

Employer Contribution/benefit payments (71,785) (25,569) (25,691) (26,682) (48,340) (46,018) 

Contribution Deficiency/(Excess) $90,455 $287,829 $260,057 $287,704 $296,613 $156,960 

ADC as a Percentage of Covered Payroll  32.4%  64.3%  39.1%  49.9%  60.2%  35.0% 

Employer Contribution as a Percentage of Covered Payroll  14.3%  5.2%  3.5%  4.2%  8.4%  7.9% 



11 

 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

Assumptions and Methods for Calculation of Actuarially Determined Contribution 

Valuation date  November 30, 2022 

Measurement date November 30, 2023 

Reporting date November 30, 2023 

Actuarial Methods 

 Cost method Entry Age Normal (level percentage of compensation) 

 Asset valuation method Market value 

Actuarial Assumptions 

 Discount Rate – 4.66% for 2023 contribution; 4.52% for 2023 liability and 2024 contribution 
 Rationale – Blended rate based on long term expected return and the 20-year Aa Municipal Bond rate 

 20-year Aa Municipal Bond Rate – 4.30% 
 Rationale – S&P Municipal Bond 20-Year High Grade Rate Index as of November 30, 2023  

 Salary Scale – 3.50% (for purpose of allocating liability) 
 Rationale – Per employer expectations 

 Return on Plan Assets – 7.00% (including inflation) 
 Rationale – Provided by investment manager 

 Mortality Rates – Public General and Public Safety 2010 Employee and Healthy Retiree, Headcount 
weighted, MP-2021 improvement scale 

 Rationale – Most current mortality rates available for municipalities 

 Utilization – 100% of future retirees will elect coverage at retirement; actual coverage used for non-active 
 Rationale – Historical 

 Termination Rates – None  
 Rationale – Small plan 

 Retirement Rates – See rates below 

Age 

General Non-Union 

Dept. Heads, DPW 

Police 

Union 

55 15% 25% 

56 10    25    

57 10    25    

58 10    35    

59 10    40    

60 100  100    

 Rationale – Based on employer experience 

 Marital Assumption – Actual spouse data used for actives and retirees 
 Rationale – Consistent with experience 

 
 

 
 



12 

 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  

 Claims Costs – See rates below: 

Monthly premiums Per Person  

       BCBS Pre-65  

55 $1,063.42 
56 1,112.54 

57 1,162.13 

58 1,215.06 

59 1,241.29 

60 1,294.23 

61 1,340.00 

62 1,370.05 

63 1,407.72 

64 1,430.61 

BCN Advantage 

65 and over 

 

234.48 

 Rationale – Provided by BCBS 

 Implicit Subsidy – Not applicable; premiums are age-graded 

 Medical Trend  
 Pre-Medicare: 7.25% for two years, then graded down by 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5% 
 Post-Medicare: 5.5% for two years, then graded down by 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 4.5% 

 Rationale – Based on State of Michigan trend survey 

 Data Collection 
 Date and form of data – All personnel and asset data were prepared by the plan sponsor or a representative 

and was generally relied upon as being correct and complete without audit by Watkins Ross 
 

 Assumption changes since prior valuation 

• Discount rate changed from 4.66% to 4.52% 

• Medical trend updated 

• Marital assumption for future retirees updated 

Assumptions used for PA 202 Reporting 

Discount rate – 3.76% 

All other assumptions are the same as used for GASB 

 

 

 

 



13 

 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Difference between Actual and Expected Experience   

 

Schedule of Changes in Assumptions  

 

Schedule of Differences between Projected and Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments  

 

 

 

Difference

between expected Recognition Deferred Deferred

and actual period Outflow of Inflow of

Year Experience (years) 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029+ Resources Resources

2018 (384,585)                     9.10 (42,262)           (42,262)         (42,262)         (42,262)         (4,227)           -                     (131,013)        

2019 (196)                             8.63 (23)                  (23)                 (23)                 (23)                 (12)                 -                     (81)                  

2020 (549,707)                     6.71 (81,924)           (81,924)         (81,924)         (58,163)         -                     (222,011)        

2021 88                                6.31 14                    14                  14                  14                  4                    46                  -                       

2022 (569,697)                     5.46 (104,340)        (104,340)       (104,340)       (104,340)       (47,997)         -                     (361,017)        

2023 (1,073)                          5.18 (207)                (207)              (207)              (207)              (207)              (38)                -                      -                     (866)                

Net recognized in OPEB expense (228,742)$      (228,742)$    (228,742)$    (204,981)$    (52,439)$       (38)$              -$                   46$                (714,988)$      

Amount Recognized in Year Ended November 30,

Recognition Deferred Deferred

Changes in period Outflow of Inflow of

Year Assumptions (years) 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029+ Resources Resources

2018 945,730                      9.10 103,926          103,926        103,926        103,926        10,396          322,174        -                       

2019 (411,677)                     8.63 (47,703)           (47,703)         (47,703)         (47,703)         (30,053)         -                     (173,162)        

2020 253058 6.71 37,714            37,714          37,714          26,774          102,202        0

2021 31,590                         6.31 5,006              5,006            5,006            5,006            1,554            16,572          -                       

2022 (457,692)                     5.46 (83,826)           (83,826)         (83,826)         (83,826)         (38,562)         -                     (290,040)        

2023 (213,690)                     5.18 (41,253)           (41,253)         (41,253)         (41,253)         (41,253)         (7,425)           -                      -                     (172,437)        

Net recognized in OPEB expense (26,136)$        (26,136)$       (26,136)$       (37,076)$       (97,918)$       (7,425)$         -$                   440,948$      (635,639)$      

Amount Recognized in Year Ended November 30,

Difference

between expected Recognition Deferred Deferred

and actual earnings period Outflow of Inflow of

Year on OPEB assets (years) 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029+ Resources Resources

2019 19,594                         5.00 3,919              -                     -                       

2020 1,823                           5.00 365                 363                363                -                       

2021 (62,286)                       5.00 (12,457)           (12,457)         (12,458)         -                     (24,915)           

2022 106,153                      5.00 21,231            21,231          21,231          21,229          63,691          -                       

2023 (20,217)                       5.00 (4,043)             (4,043)           (4,043)           (4,043)           (4,045)           -                     (16,174)           

Net recognized in OPEB expense 9,015$            5,094$          4,730$          17,186$        (4,045)$         64,054$        (41,089)$        

Amount Recognized in Year Ended November 30,



14 

SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Total Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources 

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029+

Total Deferred Outflow/(Inflow) of Resources (249,784)$    (250,148)$    (224,871)$    (154,402)$    (7,463)$     -$    

Amount Recognized in Year Ended November 30,



15 

 

 

TRUSTEE INFORMATION 

Projected benefit payments   

A graphic illustration of 20 years of projected benefit payments for the current group of covered lives is shown 
below. 
 

  

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

$180,000

2
0

2
4

2
0

2
5

2
0

2
6

2
0

2
7

2
0

2
8

2
0

2
9

2
0

3
0

2
0

3
1

2
0

3
2

2
0

3
3

2
0

3
4

2
0

3
5

2
0

3
6

2
0

3
7

2
0

3
8

2
0

3
9

2
0

4
0

2
0

4
1

2
0

4
2

2
0

4
3

20-Year Expected Payouts



16 

 

 

SUMMARY OF PLAN PROVISIONS 

Plan name City of Roosevelt Park Retiree Health Plan 
 

Benefit eligibility 

General Non-union and Police Union Hired before December 1, 2018; Age 55 with 10 years of 

service 

 

DPW Hired before December 1, 2018; Age 55 with 20 years of 

service 

 

    

Benefit Percentage of medical premiums paid according to the 

following: 

 

  Years of General1 

  Service Non-Union DPW Police 

  10-14 25%  50% 

  15-19    50  75 

  20-24 75 90% 90 

            25+                   90 
 
Retiree contribution Balance of premiums not paid by the City 
 
Changes since prior valuation None  

  

 
1 For general, non-union retirees, the City’s contribution to retiree health insurance will be capped at the premium cost that exists as 

of the 10th year of the employee’s retirement.  



17 

 

 

GLOSSARY 

A number of special terms and concepts are used in connection with OPEB plans and the OPEB accounting 
report.  The following list reviews a number of these terms and provides a brief discussion of their meaning. 
 

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) – A target or recommended contribution for the reporting period, 

determined in conformity with Actuarial Standards of Practice based on the most recent measurement 

available when the contribution for the reporting period was adopted.  

 

Actuarial Cost Method – This is a mathematical formula which is used to allocate the present value of projected 

benefits to past and future plan years. 

 

Amortization – The difference between actual and expected investment returns, the difference between 

actual and expected experience, and the impact of any plan or assumption changes will be amortized and paid 

over future years. 

 

Depletion Date (Cross-over Point) – The projected date (if any) where plan assets, including future 
contributions, are no longer sufficient to pay Projected Benefit Payments to current members. 
 
Long-term expected rate of return – The rate of return based on the nature and mix of current and expected 
plan investments and over the time period from when an employee is hired to when all benefits to the 
employee have been paid.  
 
Market Value of Assets – The market value of all assets in the fund including any accrued contribution for the 
previous plan year, which was not paid by the end of the year. 
 
Measurement Date – The date the Total OPEB Liability, Fiduciary Net Position, and Net OPEB Liability are 
determined. 
 
Net OPEB Liability (NOL) – The Total OPEB Liability less the Plan Fiduciary Net Position. 
 
Normal Cost – For GASB 74/75 purposes, normal cost is the equivalent of service cost (see definition of service 
cost). 
 
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) – Benefits (such as death benefits, life insurance, disability, and long-

term care) that are paid in the period after employment and that are provided separately from a pension plan, 

as well as healthcare benefits paid in the period after employment, regardless of the manner in which they are 

provided. OPEB does not include termination benefits or termination payments for sick leave. 

OPEB Expense (OE) – The change in the Net OPEB Liability (NOL) recognized in the current measurement 
period.  Changes to the NOL not fully recognized in a given year’s OPEB expense will be maintained as deferred 
inflows and deferred outflows.  These will be recognized incrementally in the OPEB expense over time. 

  



18 

 

 

GLOSSARY  

Plan assets – Stocks, bonds and other investments that have been segregated and restricted (usually in a trust) 
to provide for post-retirement benefits. Assets not segregated in a trust, or otherwise effectively restricted so 
that they cannot be used by the employer for other purposes, are not plan assets, even though it may be 
intended that those assets be used to provide post-retirement benefits. 
 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position – The market value of plan assets as of the measurement date. 
 
Present Value – The present value of a future payment or a series of payments is the amount of each payment, 

discounted to recognize the time value of money, and further reduced for the probability that the payment 

might not be made because of death, disability or termination of employment. 

 

Projected Benefit Payments – All benefits projected to be payable to current active and inactive participants 
as a result of their past service and their expected future service. 
 

Real Rate of Return – The rate of return on an investment after the adjustment to eliminate inflation.  
 
Reporting Date – The date that represents the fiscal year end for the plan or employer.  
 
Service Cost – The value of portion of Total OPEB Liability earned during the current year computed in 
accordance with GAAP accounting rules. 
 
Single Equivalent Discount Rate – The single rate that gives the same total present value as discounting the 
Projected Benefit Payments with the long-term expected rate of return until the Depletion Date and 
discounting any remaining Projected Benefit Payments with the yield on a 20-year AA/Aa tax-exempt municipal 
bond index. 
 
Total OPEB Liability (TOL) – The actuarial present value of the accrued benefit determined under the Entry Age 
actuarial cost method calculated using the blended Single Equivalent Discount Rate. 
 
Valuation Date – The date as of which an actuarial valuation is performed.   
 
 

 
 



Informational Updates 

The following documents are informational updates and documents relating to our community.  They are 
for your information only and no action is requested. 

City of Roosevelt Park 

A Proud Community 



 

  November 
2023 

Shawn C. Bride 

Chief of Police 

MONTHLY REPORTS 



Chief’s Monthly Summary 

November 2023 saw police involved activity finally take a pause, a deep breath, and slow down a little 

bit.  We are historically accustomed to seeing a drop in criminal activity, calls for service, and other 

police related responses at the end of the Summer and early Fall.  Atypically, this occurs at the end of 

September and October, however this year we didn’t see that pause until November.   

November has been our catch a “you won’t believe this” offender month.  First, we arrested a 13 year 

old, from outside of the community, shoplifting.  Pretty normal at this point, however this youngster 

was toting around a stolen semi-auto pistol while doing his early holiday, five finger discount, shopping.  

The Muskegon County Prosecutor has charged this young offender with a handful of felony charges.  

Our second offender, a 24 year old from outside of the community, was nabbed by Officer Morse in the 

early morning hours for breaking into a car.  Again, unfortunate, but fairly routine.  After an extensive 

investigation, we discovered this offender had broken into more than a dozen cars.  A significant 

number of offenses, but still not nothing terribly special.  The “you won’t believe this” moment is when 

you learn that Ofc Morse arrested this very same person, in September 2022 for the EXACT SAME 

CRIMES, IN THE EXACT SAME AREA.  Factoring in the jail time this person served on the 2022 offenses 

(30+ car burlgaries), this genius level offender literally served his sentence, got out of jail and did it all 

over again.  We have seen his probation violated, his bond revoked, and a number of new felony 

charges issued.  He is likely going to be headed to prison.  Great arrest by Ofc Morse!!  

Our staff has been able to use their well-earned benefit time off and celebrate the Holidays with friends 

and family.  We ran mostly minimum staffing shifts, and scaled back trainings so Officers could get some 

much needed time away and recharge themselves.  It’s very important to me that our Officers don’t 

start to lose interest and suffer from “burnout” while we still maintain an exceptional level of service, 

and hopefully exceed the expectations you and the community hold for us. 

On behalf of the staff of RPPD, I would like to thank you all once again for your support and your trust in 

us.  We appreciate the opportunities to exhibit for you, our residents, visitors, and business partners, 

“Roosevelt Park Excellence.”                

 

Shawn Bride, 

Chief of Police      



Calls for Service:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 646 562 662 698 756 748 787 686 663 596 634 0 7438
2022 242 260 342 267 442 357 449 416 449 451 425 561 4661

Traffic Safety Activities

Total Traffic Stops:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 188 116 118 157 231 167 237 178 150 113 98 0 1753
2022 11 20 67 33 140 86 84 107 70 117 104 139 978

646
562

662
698

756 748
787

686 663
596

634

0

242 260
342

267

442
357

449 416 449 451 425

561

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Calls for Service
2022 vs 2023 

2023 2022

188

116 118

157

231

167

237

178
150

113
98

011 20

67

33

140

86 84
107

70

117
104

139

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Traffic Stops:

2023 2022



Total Citations Issued:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 152 116 96 123 129 120 169 149 140 138 85 0 1417
2022 8 5 34 21 42 49 71 59 61 81 95 133 659

OWI Arrests:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 0 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 5
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 0 3

Motor Vehicle Crashes (Public & Private Property):
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 8 16 12 8 9 17 10 11 14 12 17 0 134
2022 13 8 7 11 16 11 15 15 15 15 15 6 147

152

116
96

123 129 120

169
149 140 138

85

08 5

34
21

42 49
71

59 61
81

95

133

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total Citations Issued

2023 2022

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Motor Vehicle Crashes (Public & Private Property)

2023 2022



Top 5 Crash Locations:
#1 3285 Henry St (Walmart)
#2 Henry St @ Broadway Ave
#3 Henry St @ W Norton Av
#4 W. Sherman @ Henry St
#5 Maple Grove Rd @ W Norton Ave

Crimes, Reports, and Arrest Activities

Field Contacts:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 83 51 56 76 105 80 127 76 69 58 62 0 843
2022 4 11 14 3 102 44 27 41 22 49 55 55 427

Criminal Arrests:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 50 73 105 61 71 51 120 77 66 98 59 0 831
2022 1 2 10 5 10 12 10 15 31 43 44 48 231

83

51 56
76

105

80

127

76 69
58 62

04 11 14
3

102

44
27

41
22

49 55 55

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Field Contacts

2023 2022

50

73

105

61
71

51

120

77
66

98

59

01 2 10 5 10 12 10 15
31

43 44 48

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Criminal Arrests

2023 2022



Incidents Cleared by Arrests:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 38 41 54 42 47 37 55 42 44 51 52 0 503
2022 11 3 13 6 13 10 18 22 32 28 25 37 218

Incident Reports:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 203 221 221 211 213 262 267 224 246 227 190 0 2485
2022 138 140 172 127 215 181 233 221 249 213 184 193 2266

Medicals/Overdoses/Suicida/Check Wellbeing:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 25 39 27 37 49 67 33 35 19 43 21 0 395
2022 33 43 42 28 35 26 39 37 33 37 46 29 428

Larcenies/Frauds:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 29 31 18 27 15 12 46 28 30 49 26 0 311
2022 28 19 26 21 26 27 30 25 34 39 32 26 333

Assaults:
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2023 1 1 4 3 1 2 3 3 1 4 2 0 25
2022 1 1 2 2 4 3 6 7 6 2 2 2 38

38 41

54

42
47

37

55

42 44
51 52

0

11
3

13
6

13 10
18 22

32 28 25

37

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Incidents Cleared by Arrests

2023 2022

0

100

200

300

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Incident Reports

2023 2022



),1$1&,$/�5(3257 

2&72%(5�),1$1&,$/�5(3257 

dŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϮϰ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ǁĞƌĞ�ΨϳϮϮ͕ϱϳϴ͕�Žƌ�ϯ͘ϴй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
&zϮϬϮϰ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘� dŽƚĂů� ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĂŵĞ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�Ψϭ͕ϳϬϲ͕Ϯϵϲ͕�Žƌ�ϲ͘ϵй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘��� 
�

)$50�5(3257 
7HG�&RVWLJDQ���)DUP�0DQDJHU 

�����*52:,1*�6($621 

tŝƚŚ� EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ� ŚĂǀŝŶŐ� ĐŽŵĞ� ƚŽ� Ă� ĐůŽƐĞ͕� ǁĞ� ĐĂŶ�
ůŽŽŬ� ďĂĐŬ� Ăƚ� Ă� ďƵƐǇ� ŵŽŶƚŚ� ĂŶĚ� ĞǀĞƌǇƚŚŝŶŐ� ƚŚĂƚ�
ǁĂƐ� ĂĐĐŽŵƉůŝƐŚĞĚ͘� �ŽƌŶ� ŚĂƌǀĞƐƚ� ǁƌĂƉƉĞĚ� ƵƉ� ŽŶ�
EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϳ͘�tĞ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ůŝŐŚƚĞƌ�ŚĂƌǀĞƐƚ�ƐĞĂƐŽŶ�ƚŚĂŶ�
ƵƐƵĂů�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ĐŽƌŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƐŽůĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŝůĂŐĞ͘�
tĞ� ƐƟůů� ŚĂĚ� ϳϬϬ� ĂĐƌĞƐ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ� ŽŶ� ŽƵƌ� ŽǁŶ͕�
ďƵƚ� ŝƚ� ǁĂƐ� Ăůů� ƐŽůĚ� ĚŝƌĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ĨĂƌŵ͘� EŽŶĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
ŚĂƌǀĞƐƚĞĚ� ĐŽƌŶ�ǁĂƐ� ĚƌŝĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƚŽƌĞĚ� ŝŶ� ŽƵƌ�ďŝŶƐ͘�
dŚŝƐ� ůĞŌ�ŽƵƌ�ďŝŶƐ�ŽƉĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ă� ůŽĐĂů�ĞůĞǀĂƚŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŶƚ�
ĨŽƌ� ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ� ƐƉĂĐĞ͕� ƐŽ� ǁĞ͛ƌĞ� ŶŽǁ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ƚƌƵĐŬůŽĂĚƐ�ŽĨ�ŐƌĂŝŶ�ĨŽƌ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ͘�� 

,1)5$6758&785(� 0$,17(1$1&(� $1'�
,03529(0(17�352-(&76 
'RXJ�1R\HV���55&�(QJLQHHU�	�3URMHFW�0DQDJHU� 

:�67$7,21�)25&(�0$,1�5(3/$&(0(17 

dŚĞ� t� ^ƚĂƟŽŶ� &ŽƌĐĞ� DĂŝŶ� ZĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ŚĂƐ� ƌĞĂĐŚĞĚ� ^ƵďƐƚĂŶƟĂů� �ŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ� ƐƚĂƚƵƐ͘� KŶ�
EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ� ϭϱƚŚ͕� ƚŚĞ� ŇŽǁ� ĨƌŽŵ� t� ^ƚĂƟŽŶ� ǁĂƐ�
ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ� ƉŝƉĞůŝŶĞ͘� ;dŚĞ� ŇŽǁ� ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚĞ�tŚŝƚĞŚĂůů�dŽǁŶƐŚŝƉ�ƉƵŵƉ�ƐƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĂƐƚ�
ĞŶĚ� ŚĂĚ� ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ� ďĞĞŶ� ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚ� Ă� ĨĞǁ� ĚĂǇƐ�
ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ͘Ϳ� �ƵĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ� ƉŝƉĞ� ĚŝĂŵĞƚĞƌ͕� ŝƚ�
ǁĂƐ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�sĂƌŝĂďůĞ�&ƌĞƋƵĞŶĐǇ��ƌŝǀĞƐ�
;s&�ƐͿ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� t� ^ƚĂƟŽŶ� ƉƵŵƉƐ� ŶĞĞĚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ�
ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĞŶƐƵƌĞ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƵŵƉƐ� ĚŝĚ� ŶŽƚ� ƌƵŶ�
ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĂŶŐĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ƉƵŵƉ� ĐƵƌǀĞƐ͘�
WƌĞŝŶΘEĞǁŚŽĨ� ĞŶŐŝŶĞĞƌƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŽŶ� ŚĂŶĚ� ƚŽ� ĂƐƐŝƐƚ�
ŽƵƌ� KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ� DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ� ƐƚĂī� ǁŝƚŚ�
ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� s&�Ɛ͘� dŚĞ� ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ� ǁĞŶƚ� ĂƐ�
ƐŵŽŽƚŚ�ĂƐ�ŽŶĞ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŚŽƉĞĚ͘ 

KǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǆƚ� ĐŽƵƉůĞ� ŽĨ� ǁĞĞŬƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ͕�
<ĂŵŵŝŶŐĂ� Θ� ZŽŽĚǀŽĞƚƐ͕� ǁŝůů� ďĞ� ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂďĂŶĚŽŶŵĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŽůĚ� ĨŽƌĐĞ� ŵĂŝŶ� ĂŶĚ� Ăŝƌ�
ƌĞůĞĂƐĞƐ͕� ƐŝƚĞ� ƌĞƐƚŽƌĂƟŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ĐůĞĂŶƵƉ͕� ĂŶĚ� ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ƉƵŶĐŚ�ůŝƐƚ�ŝƚĞŵƐ͘ 

'DYH�-RKQVRQ���'LUHFWRU� 

:+,7(+$//� 72:16+,3� 081,&,3$/� :$7(5�
(;7(16,21� 

tĞ� ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� Ă� �ƌŝŶŬŝŶŐ�tĂƚĞƌ� ^ƚĂƚĞ� ZĞǀŽůǀŝŶŐ�
&ƵŶĚ� ;�t^Z&Ϳ� ůŽĂŶ� ƚŽ� ĞǆƚĞŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� tŚŝƚĞŚĂůů�
dŽǁŶƐŚŝƉ� ŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů� ǁĂƚĞƌ� ůŝŶĞ� ƚŽ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�^ŝůǀĞƌ��ƌĞĞŬ�ZŽĂĚ�ĂŶĚ�Dŝůů�WŽŶĚ�dƌĂŝů�
ǁŚŽƐĞ� ǁĞůůƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ� ĨŽƌŵĞƌ� DƵƐŬĞŐŽŶ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� tŚŝƚĞŚĂůů�
tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ� dƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ� WůĂŶƚ͘� tĞ� ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ� ĨŽƌ�
Ψϲ͘ϯD�ŝŶ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͘�KƵƌ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƐĐŽƌĞĚ�ƉŽŽƌůǇ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ� ĂůŐŽƌŝƚŚŵ� ŽŶ� �'>�͛Ɛ� WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ� ZĂŶŬŝŶŐ�
tŽƌŬƐŚĞĞƚ͕� ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ� ƵƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ůŝƩůĞ� ŚŽƉĞ� ƚŚĂƚ� ǁĞ�

5ϿЍЉЏЌϽϿ�5ϿϽЉАϿЌГ�&ϿЈЎϿЌ�0ЉЈЎЂІГ�5ϿЊЉЌЎ���1ЉАϿЇϼϿЌ������ 

7KH�5HVRXUFH�5HFRYHU\�&HQWHU�H[LVWV� WR� LPSURYH� WKH�SXEOLF�KHDOWK�RI�0XVNHJRQ�&RXQW\�FLWL]HQV�E\� UHFHLYLQJ�
SROOXWHG�ZDVWHZDWHU��FOHDQLQJ�LW�XS��DQG�UHWXUQLQJ�LW�WKH�HQYLURQPHQW�IRU�UHXVH�DQG�HQMR\PHQW���:H�UHFRJQL]H�WKH�
ZHLJKW�RI�RXU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�DV�VWHZDUGV�ERWK�RI�WKH�HQYLURQPHQW�DQG�RI�RXU�V\VWHP�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�ZKLFK�HQDEOHV�
XV�WR�GR�RXU� MRE�� �2XU�JRDO� LV� WR�RIIHU�RXU�VHUYLFH�WR� WKH�SHRSOH�RI�0XVNHJRQ�&RXQW\�DW� WKH�EHVW�SRVVLEOH�UDWH�
ZLWKRXW�FRPSURPLVLQJ�RXU�VWHZDUGVKLSV�� 

~David Johnson, Director 

&RUQ�KDUYHVW�DW�ILHOG����)LHOG���ZDV�RQH�RI�ILYH�FRUQ�
ILHOGV� WKDW� ZHUH� KDUYHVWHG� DV� JUDLQ�� 2XU� RWKHU��
WKLUWHHQ�FRUQ�ILHOGV�ZHUH�FXW�DV�VLODJH�� 

Page 60 of 77



 0XVNHJRQ�&RXQW\�5HVRXUFH�5HFRYHU\�&HQWHU� ����3URJUHVV�5HSRUW 1RYHPEHU����������3DJH���RI�� 

7KH�&RXQW\�RI�0XVNHJRQ�LV�DQ�(TXDO�2SSRUWXQLW\�(PSOR\HU�FRPPLWWHG�WR�ZRUNSODFH�GLYHUVLW\�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�$PHULFDQV�ZLWK�'LVDELOLWLHV�$FW� 

ǁŽƵůĚ�ŐĞƚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ǁŚĞŶ��'>��ĂŶŶŽƵŶĐĞĚ�
ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĨƵŶĚƐ͕� ǁĞ� ǁĞƌĞ�
ĂŵĂǌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽƵƌ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŚĂĚ�ďĞĞŶ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ǁŚŽůĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ϮϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ůŽĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�
ϴϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů�ĨŽƌŐŝǀĞŶĞƐƐ�
;ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ϴϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂǁĂƌĚĞĚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�
ŚĂǀĞ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ƉĂŝĚ� ďĂĐŬͿ͘� ,ĞƌĞ� ĂƌĞ� ƐŽŵĞ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƟŶŐ�
ĨĂĐƚƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂǁĂƌĚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͘ 

ϭ͘ tĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭ�ŵƵŶŝĐŝƉĂůŝƟĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ��t^Z&�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ  ͘

Ϯ͘ KĨ� ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭ� ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚƐ͕� ŽŶůǇ� ϲϰ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ� ĂŶǇ�
ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶůǇ�ϰϱ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŵ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ϭϬϬй  ͘

ϯ͘ /Ŷ� ŽƌĚĞƌ� ƚŽ� ŐĞƚ� ĂŶǇ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͕� ŝƚ� ǁĂƐ� ǀĞƌǇ�
ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ� ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� Ă��ŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ�
�ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘� KĨ� ƚŚĞ� ϲϰ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ǁĞƌĞ�
ĂǁĂƌĚĞĚ͕� ŽŶůǇ� ŽŶĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞŵ� ĚŝĚ� ŶŽƚ� ŚĂǀĞ� ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƟŽŶ͘� 

ϰ͘ KĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϲϰ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ĂǁĂƌĚĞĚ͕�ϵϮй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŵ�ƐĐŽƌĞĚ�
ϴϬ� ƉŽŝŶƚƐ� Žƌ� ŚŝŐŚĞƌ͘� dŚĞ� ůŽǁĞƐƚ� ƐĐŽƌŝŶŐ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ƚŚĂƚ� ƐƟůů� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ŚĂĚ� Ă� ƐĐŽƌĞ� ŽĨ� ϱϱ�
ƉŽŝŶƚƐ͘ 

ϱ͘ EŽǁ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵĂǌŝŶŐ�ƌĞǀĞůĂƟŽŶ  ͗  ��
dŚĞ� ůŽǁĞƐƚ� ƐĐŽƌŝŶŐ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ŐĞƚ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ǁĂƐ�
KhZ^͊� dŚĞ� ŽŶůǇ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ� ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ� ĚŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ� ƐƚĂƚƵƐ� ƚŽ� ŐĞƚ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ǁĂƐ� KhZ^͊� /Ɛ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ŶŽƚ�ĂŵĂǌŝŶŐ͍ 

ϲ͘ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ͛ƌĞ�ǁŽŶĚĞƌŝŶŐ�ǁŚǇ�ǁĞ�ŐŽƚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĚĞƐƉŝƚĞ�
ŽƵƌ�ĚŝƐŵĂů�ƐĐŽƌĞ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŽŶůǇ�ŽŶĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶ͗�W&�^͊�
tĞ�ǁĞƌĞ� ŽŶĞ� ŽĨ� ĮǀĞ� ĂƉƉůŝĐĂŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽƐĞ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�
ǁĞƌĞ� ĮǆŝŶŐ� Ă� W&�^� ƉƌŽďůĞŵ͘� �ůů� ĮǀĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚŽƐĞ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ� ŐŽƚ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͘� �ƉƉĂƌĞŶƚůǇ� W&�^� ƚƌƵŵƉĞĚ�
ĞǀĞƌǇƚŚŝŶŐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ŝƚ�ĐĂŵĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƫŶŐ�ĂǁĂƌĚĞĚ͊�� 

67$7,67,&$/�&203$5,6216 
$PHOLD�,úLWDQ���2SHUDWLRQV�6XSHUYLVRU 

)/2:6�$1'�/$*221�/(9(/6 

dŚĞ� ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ� ĚĂŝůǇ� ƉŝƉĞĚ� ǁĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ� ŇŽǁ� ;&ŝŐ͘� ϭͿ�
ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�D�ZZ�� ŝŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ǁĂƐ�ϭϬ͘Ϭϯ�D'�͕�
ϭ͘ϳй�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ�ŇŽǁ͘�,ĂƵůĞĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ŇŽǁ�
;&ŝŐ͘�ϮͿ�ƐĞƚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϭϯ͘ϱ�D'͕�ϭϱϱй�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�
ƚŚĂŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͊�&ŝŶĂůůǇ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝƌƌŝŐĂƟŽŶ�
ƐĞĂƐŽŶ� ŽǀĞƌ͕� ƚŚĞ� ǀŽůƵŵĞ� ŽĨ� ǁĂƚĞƌ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚŽƌĂŐĞ�
ůĂŐŽŽŶƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞŐƵŶ�ƚŽ�ƌŝƐĞ�ĂŐĂŝŶ͘��Ɛ�ŽĨ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϯƌĚ͕�
ƚŚĞ� ůĂŐŽŽŶ� ĞůĞǀĂƟŽŶ� ;&ŝŐ͘� ϯͿ� ǁĂƐ� ϭ͕ϲϲϳ� D'͕� ϴ͘ϱй�
ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƟŵĞ͘� 

63(&,$/�5(3257 
'DYH�-RKQVRQ���'LUHFWRU 

5(6&8('�%,5' 

dŚĞ�ϱ-ŝŶĐŚ�ƐŶŽǁ�ŽŶ�,ĂůůŽǁĞĞŶ�ǁĂƐŶ͛ƚ�ũƵƐƚ�Ă�ĚŽǁŶĞƌ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚƌŝĐŬ-Žƌ-ƚƌĞĂƚĞƌƐ͘�/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĂƌĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ��
ũƵǀĞŶŝůĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ďůƵĞ�ŚĞƌŽŶ͘�KƵƌ�ĨĂƌŵ�ƐƚĂī�ĐĂŵĞ�ƵƉŽŶ�
Śŝŵ� ŝŶ� Ă� ĐŽƌŶ� ĮĞůĚ� ĂŶĚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŬĞĞƉ� ĨƌŽŵ�
ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�Śŝŵ�ŽǀĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵďŝŶĞ͘�dŚĞǇ�ƉŝĐŬĞĚ�Śŝŵ�
ƵƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶŽ�ƌĞƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƚ�Śŝŵ�ĂƐŝĚĞ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ĮĞůĚ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŶŽƟĐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŝƌĚ�ŚĂĚŶ͛ƚ�
ŵŽǀĞĚ͘� dŚĞǇ� ĐĂůůĞĚ� �ŵĞůŝĂ� /ƔŝƚĂŶ͕� ŽƵƌ� KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�
^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌ͕� ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ� ƐŚĞ� ŚĂĚ� ŚĂĚ� ƐŽŵĞ� ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�
ĮŶĚŝŶŐ� ŚĞůƉ� ĨŽƌ� ďŝƌĚƐ� ŝŶ� ŶĞĞĚ� ŽĨ� ƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƟŽŶ͘�
�ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ� ƐŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ� ďŝƌĚ�ǁĂƐ� ĐĂƉĂďůĞ�
ŽĨ� ŇǇŝŶŐ͕� ƐŚĞ� ǁĂƐ� ƐƟůů� ĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ĂƉƉƌĞŚĞŶĚ� ŝƚ͘�
,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕� Ăůů� ŚĞƌ� ƉŚŽŶĞ� ĐĂůůƐ� ƚŽ� ďŝƌĚ� ƌĞŚĂďŝůŝƚĂƟŽŶ�
ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ĚĞĂĚ� ĞŶĚƐ͘� KŶĞ� ƉůĂĐĞ� ƚŽůĚ� ŚĞƌ� ƚŚĂƚ�
ƚŚĞ� ďŝƌĚ� ƉƌŽďĂďůǇ� ŐŽƚ� ďŽŐŐĞĚ� ĚŽǁŶ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƐŶŽǁ�
ƐƚŽƌŵ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƐ�ǁŽƌŶ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞĂŬ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŚƵŶŐĞƌ͘��ƵǇ�
ŝƚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŵŝŶŶŽǁƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŬĞĞƉ�ŝƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞĞŬĞŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐĞĞ� ŝĨ� ŝƚ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞƐ͘� dŚĂƚ� ƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ŐŽŽĚ� ĂĚǀŝĐĞ͘�
dŚĞ� ďŝƌĚ� ŐŽďďůĞĚ� ƵƉ� ƚŚĞ� ŵŝŶŶŽǁƐ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ�
ǁĞĞŬĞŶĚ͘��ŵĞůŝĂ�ƌĞůĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŝƌĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�
DŽŶĚĂǇ� ŝŶ� ŽŶĞ� ŽĨ� ŽƵƌ� ZĂƉŝĚ� /ŶĮůƚƌĂƟŽŶ� ƐƚƌĞĂŵƐ�
ǁŚĞƌĞ� ŚĞ� ĐŽƵůĚ� ŐĞƚ� ŚŝƐ� ŽǁŶ� ŵŝŶŶŽǁƐ͘� ,Ğ� ŚƵŶŐ�
ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ĨĞǁ�ĚĂǇƐ�ďƵƚ�ŚĂƐŶ͛ƚ�ďĞĞŶ�
ƐĞĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ǁŚŝůĞ͘�,ŽƉĞĨƵůůǇ�ŚĞ͛Ɛ�ŽŶ�ŚŝƐ�ǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŶŝĐĞ�
ǁĂƌŵ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ŽƵƚŚ͘�� 

2XU� UHVFXHG� EOXH� KHURQ�� :H� SUHVXPSWXRXVO\����
UHIHUUHG� WR� LW� DV� ³KH´�� EXW� FDOOLQJ� KLP� D� MXYHQLOH��
ZDV� EH\RQG� GRXEW� IRU� WZR� UHDVRQV�� ��� $GXOWV�
KDYH� D� FRPSOHWHO\� \HOORZ� ELOO�� DQG� KLV� ZDV� VWLOO�
PRVWO\� JUD\�� � ��� $GXOWV� KDYH� WKH� FKDUDFWHULVWLF�
SOXPH�RQ�WRS�RI�WKHLU�KHDGV��DQG�KH�GLG�QRW� 

Page 61 of 77



9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

F
lo

w
 i

n
 M

G
D

Time in Months

2021 - 2023 Total Piped Wastewater Monthly Flow 

2021

2022

2023

FY 2024 Budgeted Avg. Flow: 11.0 MGD
FY 2024 Actual Avg. Flow: 10.03 MGD 
October 2023 Avg. Flow: 10.03 MGD  
October 2022 Avg. Flow: 10.20 MGD

Figure 1

 0XVNHJRQ�&RXQW\�5HVRXUFH�5HFRYHU\�&HQWHU� ����3URJUHVV�5HSRUW 1RYHPEHU����������3DJH���RI�� 

7KH�&RXQW\�RI�0XVNHJRQ�LV�DQ�(TXDO�2SSRUWXQLW\�(PSOR\HU�FRPPLWWHG�WR�ZRUNSODFH�GLYHUVLW\�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�$PHULFDQV�ZLWK�'LVDELOLWLHV�$FW� 

Page 62 of 77



Time in Months

2021 - 2023 Hauled Waste Monthly Volume 

Figure 2

 0XVNHJRQ�&RXQW\�5HVRXUFH�5HFRYHU\�&HQWHU� ����3URJUHVV�5HSRUW 1RYHPEHU����������3DJH���RI�� 

7KH�&RXQW\�RI�0XVNHJRQ�LV�DQ�(TXDO�2SSRUWXQLW\�(PSOR\HU�FRPPLWWHG�WR�ZRUNSODFH�GLYHUVLW\�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�$PHULFDQV�ZLWK�'LVDELOLWLHV�$FW� 

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

5,000,000

5,500,000

6,000,000

6,500,000

7,000,000

7,500,000

8,000,000

8,500,000

9,000,000

9,500,000

10,000,000

10,500,000

11,000,000

11,500,000

12,000,000

12,500,000

13,000,000

13,500,000

14,000,000

14,500,000

15,000,000

15,500,000

16,000,000

16,500,000

17,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

V
o

lu
m

e 
in

 G
al

lo
n

s

2021

2022

2023

YTD FY24:  13.5 MG 

October 2023:  13.5 MG 

October 2022:  5.30 MG

FY24 Budgeted:  10.7 MG/month
FY24 Avg:  13.5 MG/month 

Page 63 of 77



681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

690

691

692

E
le

v
at

io
n

 i
n

 F
ee

t

Time in Months

2021 - 2023 Metro Lagoon Elevation 

2021

2022

2023

10/23/2023  684.0 ft. or  1,667 MG
10/24/2022  684.3 ft. or  1,822 MG

Figure 3

Jan  Feb     Mar     Apr     May Jun    Jul     Aug   Sep     Oct     Nov     Dec

 0XVNHJRQ�&RXQW\�5HVRXUFH�5HFRYHU\�&HQWHU� ����3URJUHVV�5HSRUW 1RYHPEHU����������3DJH���RI�� 

7KH�&RXQW\�RI�0XVNHJRQ�LV�DQ�(TXDO�2SSRUWXQLW\�(PSOR\HU�FRPPLWWHG�WR�ZRUNSODFH�GLYHUVLW\�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�$PHULFDQV�ZLWK�'LVDELOLWLHV�$FW� 

Page 64 of 77



1

Jared D. Olson

From: Jared D. Olson
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 6:49 PM
To: 'Jess Sudy'
Subject: RE: Free spring program for families

Thanks Jess for the detailed description and proposal.  I will have it as a discussion point for next weeks Parks and 
Recreation Commission agenda and will get it passed on to the City Council.  Have a great weekend! 

Respectfully, 

Jared Olson 

Jared Olson 
City Manager 
City of Roosevelt Park 
231-755-3721 ext. 1954

From: Jess Sudy <jess@readmuskegon.org>  
Sent: Friday, November 10, 2023 2:14 PM 
To: Jared D. Olson <JOlson@rooseveltpark.org> 
Subject: Re: Free spring program for families 

Hello, Again Jared,  
It was nice talking with you today. Here are the dates we are hoping to use the community center and a short 
description of the event that we have planned. Each event has 3 possible dates, please let me know which one will work 
best for the community center. The times below are event times, and we would need additional time before and after 
for set up and clean up. Also if I didn't mention it before all of these events are %100 free to the community. For each 
event, we are hoping to have 25-30 participants (kids) with their families.  
Eat the Rainbow - February 12th, 13th, or 14th. 3:30 - 5 pm. Kids learn that different colors in fruits and vegetables 
represent different minerals and nutrients, and understand that eating a variety of colors is important for good 
nutrition. Includes a free book and food supplies for families. 
Seed Dissection - March 18th, 19th, or 20th. 3:30 - 5 pm. Kids learn the parts of a seed and how they help it sprout and 
grow. Families receive a free book and materials to take home.  
Beneficial Bees - April 22nd, 23rd, or 24th. 3:30 - 5 pm. Learn how bees pollinate the food we eat. To understand how 
bees play a role in our food systems. Kids also are able to use the bee bots to simulate how bees pollinate plants. Each 
family will receive a free book and materials to take home. 
Planting seeds, germination station &  pea shoots - May 20th,21st, or 22nd. 3:30-5 pm. Kids learn how to plant and 
harvest pea shoots and learn the nutritional benefits of eating pea shoots. They will observe that seeds can be a variety 
of shapes, sizes, colors, and textures, and plant seeds for a garden. They will make observations of various seeds to 
determine if seed size affects germination rate. Each family will receive a free book & materials to take home to start 
their own garden. 



Thank you again for your willingness to let us use the community center for these events. Once you hear back please let 
me know and we will begin preparing!  Please let me know if you need clarification on anything or have any questions.  

Have a wonderful weekend. 



1

Jared D. Olson

From: LEO-MICCentergrants <LEO-MICCentergrants@michigan.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 12:54 PM
Subject: Update to Community Center Grant Timeline

Greetings, 

We are writing with an additional update to the timeline for the Michigan Community Center and Neighborhood 
Initiative grants. 

Due to the high number of applicants to this funding opportunity, we have found it necessary to allow for additional 
time to ensure a fair and thorough review of all applications. The review process will continue through December and 
we now anticipate making funding announcements in January. We will provide further updates as necessary. 

We hope enjoy this holiday season! 

Sincerely, 
The Community Center Grant Team 



i 

STATE LAND BANK AUTHORITY 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
RFP 2023-009 

BLIGHT ELIMINATION PROGRAM 
ROUND 4 

Important Dates: 

Event Date Due Time Due Method of Communication 

RFP Release October 9, 2023 SLBA Website 

Questions on RFP Open 
Send questions to: 
landbank@michigan.gov 

Answers to Questions 
no later than ten (10) 
days after proper receipt 

SLBA website 

Submissions Due December 8, 2023 
Send submissions to: 
landbank@michigan.gov 

Award/Reject 
no later than    
February 15, 2024 

Direct 

mailto:landbank@michigan.gov
mailto:landbank@michigan.gov

	item 1 12-18-23 agenda
	Item 2 Council Memo 12-18-2023
	Item 3 Work Session Item 1
	Item 4 Meeting Minutes 12-04-2023
	WORK SESSION
	Council discussed Agenda Items:
	Special Guests:
	City Treasurer Kate Dibble called the Council meeting to order at 6:33 pm 2023-218 ROLL CALL

	2023-219 INVOCATION
	2023-220 NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF MAYOR/MAYOR PRO TEM
	2023-222 PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS
	2023-223 CONSENT AGENDA
	Appointment of City Officers 2024

	2023-224 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	2023-225 NEW BUSINESS
	9A. 2024 Meeting Dates
	9B. 2024 Commercial Property and Liability Insurance Coverage
	9C. 2024 Property Tax Poverty Exemption Policy Update
	9D. Updating Huntington Bank Account Signers

	2023-226 COUNCIL COMMENTS
	2023-227 DEPARTMENT HEAD REPORTS
	2023-228 PUBLIC COMMENTS
	2023-229 ADJOURNMENT

	Item 5 List of Bills 12-18-23
	Item 6 Memo- Council Committees - 2023-24
	Item 7 Memo- Board and Commission Appointments 2023
	ITem 8 MEMO - OPEB Actuarial Roll Forward Valuation 2023
	Item 9 GASB-RPT 74 75 11.30.2023
	Item z1  Cover Page Informational Updates
	Item z1.1 Nov pd report
	11 November 2023 Monthly Report
	November 2023 Monthly Stats

	Item z2 WWTP Report
	7. Informational Items
	B. Resource Recovery Center Monthly Report, November 2023
	Resource Recovery Center Monthly  Report, November 2023



	Item z2.1 Read Muskegon Memo
	Item z3 Community Center Grant Update
	Item z4 Blight Grant Timeline
	BLIGHT ELIMINATION PROGRAMROUND 4




